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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 34 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {(indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (1CAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Walxer Chandiok & Co _LP is segslerad
wilthy Bmiied Heshitiy with identificaton
riibai, Mew Delhl, Nelda and Puns fiurbet AAC-2085 and ils reglatered olfice
al L4 Connatght Clre s, Nev Db,
HOoo, India

Charierad Actounianis

abad, Koohi, Kolkdla,

Difleos I Bongalo, Chandigah, (Zhe'nnal,-eurunmm.fl




Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting Lnless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10} of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
are also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resutting from fraud is higher than for one resuilting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal contral;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting ‘and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the Telated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadeguate, to rhodify ouf opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditors, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmeodified opinion on those
financial statements vide their audit report dated 5 July 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Rased on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we repott, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014
(as amended).

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fy The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to t lanations given to us:

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and befief, as disclosed

(c)

vi.

in note 43(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have heen advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disciosed
in note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (the Funding Parties’}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a} and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for raintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, the audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software
to log any direct data changes, as described in note 44 1o the financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.; 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFARNS227

Place: Gurugram
Date: 3 September 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited on the financlal statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i (a)

(b)

{d)

(e)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i){a)(B) of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and relevant details of right of use asset under which the assets are physicaily
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right of use asset were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in Note 3(i) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) during the year. Further, the Company does not hold any intangible assets.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of

(b)

(iii)

(iv)
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the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs} or any other parties during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.
As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule
VI of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. In our opinion, and according fo the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 of
the Act in respect of investments, as applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the infermation and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited on the financial statements for the year

ended

(vii){(a)

(b)

(viif)

(ix)(a)

(b)

(x)(a)

{b)
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31 March 2024 (cont’d)

of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view fo
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no
utilisation during the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any
previous years. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ix){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations gi\fen to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) converiible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

{b} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistie-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiily  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b} We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company tifl date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b} Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank}
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our
communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns
raised by the outgoing auditors.

Chortered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d}

{xix}) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financiai ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(xx)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at end of the current
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as at end of the current financial
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi} The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepalk Mittal

Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFARNS227

Place. Gurugram
Date: 3 September 2024

{Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Nisagra
Renewable Energy Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
(‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adegquacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. ‘

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

Chartered Accountanis
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Nisagra
Renewable Energy Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 {(cont’d)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N

1]

Deepak Mittal
Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFARNS227

Place: Gurugram
Date; 3 September 2024
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NISAGRA RENEWABLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40106DL20I8PTC331399

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{All amounts are stated in ¥ lnkhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars Notes Mach 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 29,489.99 30,874.59
Right-of-use assets 3 1,032,528 1,083.19
Financial assets .

Security deposil 4 63.88 63.81
Non cuirent tax assets {net) 5 30.43 26,79
Other non current assels 6 - 0,20
Sub total {A) 30,616,88 32,048.58
Current assets
Financial assets

Security deposit 7 - 0,07

Investments 8 3,524,22 645.55

Trade receivables 9 989,94 1,004.64

Cash and cash equivalents 10 44,93 380.58

Other bank balances 11 2,335.86 3,088.93

Other curren! linancial assels 12 27.38 38.00
Other current assels 13 76.85 85.57
Sub total {B) 6,999.20 5,243.34
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 37,616,08 3729192
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 7,504.00 7,504.00
Other equity 15 3,317.16 2,260,779
Sub total (C) 10,821.16 9,764,79
Non-current liabllities
Financial liabitities

Borrowings 16 22,434,06 23,618.39

Lease liabilities 37 1,229.44 1,178.22
Provisions 17 377.00 35395
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 18 1,192.57 830,64
Sub total (D) 25,233.07 2598120
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 19 1,196.26 1,144,25

Trade payables 20

total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20,79 21.25
tofal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises £8.82 93.77

Olbier current financial liabilities 21 22181 233,27
Other cuirent liabilities 22 3972 41.28
Provisions 23 2.45 12.11
Sub total (E) 1,561.85 1,545.93
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+DA+E} 37.616.08 3729192
Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial slatements

As per our report of even date

/\../‘

For and en behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
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For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 00[076N/NSO003

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No, 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024

Naresh Mansukhani
Director

DIN: 06990480
Place: Gumgram
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Pulin Mchia
Company Secretary
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Date: September (43, 2024

Parag Agrawai
Director
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NISAGRA RENEWABLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40166DL2018PTC331399

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ Jakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 24 5,452,98 5,703.17
Other inconie 25 358.97 874.33
Total income 5,811.95 6,577.50
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 26 197.83 205.75
Finance cost 27 2,173.45 2,876.44
Depreciation and amortizalion expense 28 1,448.21 1,459.35
Other expenses 29 573,69 568.67
Total expenses 4,393.18 5,110.21
Profit before tax 1,418.77 1,467.29
Tax expense 30
Current tax expense - -
Deferred tax expenses 362.05 372.52
Totak tax expense 362.65 372.52
Profit after tax (A} 1,056.72 1,094,77
Other comprehensive income
Hems that will not be reclassified to profil and loss in subsequent periods :
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (0.46) 0.29
Less: Income tax relating lo above item 0.11 0.07)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of (ax (B) (0.35) 4.22
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 1.956.37 1,094.99
Enrnings per equity share: [Nominal value of share ; ¥ 10] 31
(1) Basic (%) L.4i 1.46
(2) Diluted (T) 141 1.46
Summary of material accounting policy information 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 001076 N/N300013
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Deepak Mittal Naresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Partner Director Director
Membeuship No. 503843 DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717
Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024
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Pulin Mehta
Company Secretary
M. No. - Ad43457
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024



NISAGRA RENEWABLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-U40106DL2018PTC331399
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in T fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Operating activities
Profif before tax 1,418.77 1,467.29
Adjustment to reconeile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,448.21 1,459.35
Interest income on fixed deposit (250.68) (207.98)
Interest income on security deposit (4.31) (2.71)
Interest income on income tax refund (1.07) {1.56)
Interest on loan from financial institution 2,029.18 2,115.57
Interest expense on lease liability 109.16 118.50
Interest expense on decommissioning liability 27.68 35.66
Profit on redemption of mutual fund (90.19) (30.43)
Net gain on investment in mutual fund measured at fair value through profit and ioss (9.19) (0.33)
Interest on loan from holding company - 89.75
Other borrowing cost (bank guarantee, hedging cost and other charges) 7.43 516,96
4,684.99 5,560.07
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assels 2.40 (0.02)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables 14.68 (5.60)
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets 8.92 (13.29%
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (8.74) 14.31
(Decreasc)/Increase in trade payables (25.41) 60.33
{Decrease) in other current financial liabilities (0.93) {39.95)
{Decrease) in other current liabilities (1.56) (62.04)
4,674.35 5,513.81
Income tax paid (net of refund) (3.64) 3.47
Net eash flow generated from operating activities (A) 4,670.71 5,517.28
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment including capital work in progress {17.32) (144.12)
Interest received 264.28 196,45
Praceeds from bank deposits pledged {net) - 1,638.70
Investiment in mutual funds (net) (2,779.29) (614.79)
Proceeds from / {investment) in bank deposits (net) 753.07 (1,321,42)
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (1,779.26) (845.18)
Financing activities
Repayment of loan to financial institution (1,144.25) {26,502.97)
Proceeds of loan from financial institution - 26,005.74
Repayment of loan to holding company (refer note 34) - (1,919.20)
Proceeds of loan from holding company (refer note 34) - 935,00
Payment of lease liabilities (57.94) (56.14)
Other borrowing cost paid (bank guarantee and other incidental charges) (7.43) (605.26)
Interest paid on borrowings(s) (2,017.48) (2,193.39)
Net cash flow used in finaneing activities C) (3,227.10) (4,336.22)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (335,65) 335.88
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 380.58 44.70
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year* 44.93 J80.58
*Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)
Cash on hand 0.13 0.13
Balances with schedule banks:
- On current accounts 44.80 380.45
Total cash and cash equivalents 44.93 380.58




NISAGRA RENEWABLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-U40106DL2018PTC331399
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities except those disclosed above and under note 11.

Summary of material accounting policy information (refer note - 2}
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even dale

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
[PEy agﬁ/w

Deepak Mittal

Naresh Mansulchani Parag Agrawal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 503843 DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024

Pulin Melita
Company Secretary
M. No. - A43457
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024



NISAGRA RENEWABLE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U41106DL2018PTC331399

Statement of change In equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(2) Equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares T in lakhs

At April 01, 2022 7,50,40,000 7,504.00
Issue of share capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 7,50,40,000 7,504.00
Issue of share capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2024 7,50,40,000 7,504,060

{h) Other equity

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Total

Retained earnings

At April 01, 2022 1,165.80 1,165.80
Prolit for the year 1,094.77 1,094.77
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.22 0.22
Balance at March 31, 2023 2,260.79 2,260.79
Profit for the year 1,056.72 1,056.72
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of lax (0.35) (0.35)
Balance at March 31, 2024 3,317.16 3,317.16

Summary of material accounting policy information (refer note - 2}
The accompaiying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per owr report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chariered Accountanls Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 o, M

Naresh Mansukhani  Parag Agrawal

Director Director
Membership No, 503843 DIN: 06990480 DIN; 02463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: Seplember 03, 2024

P\UL’“\/"‘“
Pulin Mehta
Company Secretary
M. No. - A43457
Place: Gurugtam

Date: September 03, 2024



Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL2018PTC33139%

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited is a private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited. The
registered office of the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza I, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New
Delhi-110075.

The Company was incorporated on March 22, 2018. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up,
operating, maintaining generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company had
commissioned 70 MW Solar Power Project in the state of Maharashtra (“Project”) and electricily generated from it is sold
to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited. Further, since the Company is engaged into infrastructural
facilities as provided under schedule VI of Companies Act, 2013, the provisions of section 186 except 186 (1) are not
applicable to the Company,

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the tesolution of the Board of Directors dated
September 03, 2024

Basis of Preparation and Material accounting policy information

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies,

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Material accounting policy information

a) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management lo make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

b} Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
of 12 months which is based on the nature of business of the Company and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. Current assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realized within 12 months
and Current liabilities do not include items which are due after 12 months, the period of 12 months being reckoned
from the reporting date.

¢) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and

the correction of errors. Il has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendment had no impact on the Company.




Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL2018PTC331399
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ii)

i)

)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accoutting policy disclosures,

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise (o equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendment had no impact on the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives, if’
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form customers,

Sale of Power: The Company’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized over time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e, on the supply
of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms of the
Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management best estimates wherever required.

Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured retiably.

Contract Assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivable; A receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).




Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL2018PTC331399

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

e) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipmment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.
The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set-out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Act:

Useful life
Assets category ({in years)
Plant and Equipment * 25
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicies 8
Computers 3

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Company, based on technical assessment made by intetnal expert, has estimated the useful life
of solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the asset will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset, The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized, The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f} Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.




Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL2018PTC331399

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i) Right-of-use assets

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

»  Leaschold Land 25 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company al the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also
subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments aiso include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made,
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain plant & machinery,
vehicle etc. (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset, Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred, Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from forcign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

h) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial kability or equity

instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value

s.0r sales of
S
X -,




Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL2018PTC331399

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment., Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
categoty applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a)  The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef, but has
transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transfetred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset, In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Tnd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
o  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances
Financial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts fo recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve month ECL.

Lifetime EC) are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash fiows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credil enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfelio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss atlowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss, This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off critetia,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, All financial liabilitics are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings,

Subsequent measurement
The measuretnent of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Finaneial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes deri\?t@?

{ar/
/s
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instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for irading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities desighated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses atiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not qubsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and Josses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process,

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of Financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i) Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupces {INR or Z) which is also the functional and reporting currency of
the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by- applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rate, Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise.

Non-monetaty items measured at fair value in a foreign cwrrency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
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in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

) Taxes
Current Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reperting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The cartying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or foss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCT or directly in equity. »
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k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already paid exceeds the contributien due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will fead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method, The actuarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit lability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
¢ The date of the ptan amendment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and [oss:

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
seftlements; and

e Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accurnulated at the reporting date,

The Company treats accumnulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability.

1) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split {consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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m) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probabie that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as
part of the cost of the particular asset, The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset,

n) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An agset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount, That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income untess the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

0) Contingent Assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an assel.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.




Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL2618PTC331399
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

q) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid lo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
) In the principal market for the asset or liability
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market parficipant's ability to generate economic
benefils by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as 4 whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilities thal are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

¥) Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, As at 31st March, 2024, MCA has not notified any
new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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3. () Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land* Plant and Cemputers Furniture & Office Vehicles Total
equipment fixture equipment
Gross biock {(at Cost)
Opening as at Aprit 01, 2022 552,66 34,537.54 34.65 4.20 1622 - 35,145.27
Additions during the year - 71.96 - 040 0.43 41,71 114.50
Disposals during the year - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2023 552.66 34,609,506 34.65 4.60 16,65 41,71 3525977
Additions during the year - 11.30 1.70 - - “ 13.00
Disposals during the year - - - - - - -
At Maxch 31, 2024 552.66 34,620.80 36.35 4.60 16.65 41,71  35,272.77
Depreciation/ Amertisation
Opening as st April 01, 2022 - 2,949.12 29.84 0.98 4.47 - 2,984.41
Charge for the year - 1,390.47 333 0.41 3.10 3.46 1,400.77
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2023 - 4,339.59 33.17 1,39 7.57 3.46 4,385.18
Charge for the year - 1,388.81 0.27 0.44 3.12 4.96 1,397.60
Disposals - - - - - - -
At March 31,2024 - 5,728.40 33.44 1.83 10.69 8.42 578278
Net earrying value
At March 31, 2023 552.66 30,269.91 1,48 3.21 9,08 38.25  30,874.59
At March 31, 2024 552,66 28,802.40 2.91 277 5.96 33.29  29.489.99
*Frechold land
Description of item of property Gross Carrying] Title deeds held in | Whether title deed holder | Property held | Reason for not
Value the name of is a promoter, director or | since which being held in
(% lakhs) relative of promoter / date the name of the
director or employee of Company
Freehold land 552,66 NREPL No Year 2019-20 NA
(i) Right-of-use assets*
Particulars Leaschold Total
Land

Opening as at April 01, 2022 1,049.78 1,049.78
Adjustment during the year 91.99 91.99
Depreciation for the year (58.58) (58.58)
Balonce as at March 31, 2023 1,083.19 1,083,149
Depreciation for the year (50.61) (50.61)
Balance as ait March 31, 2024 1,032,58 1,032.58

* Right-of-use assets: refer note 37 for disclosures.
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Particulars As at As at
) March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
4 Non current financial asset
Securily deposil 63.88 63.81
Total 63,88 63.81
5 Non current tax assets (net)
Advance income-tax [nel of provision for tax 2 Nil] 30,43 26.79
Total 30,43 26,79
6 Other non-current assets {Unsceured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses - 0,20
Total - 220
7 Current financial asset
Security deposils - 0,07
Total - 0,07
8 Investments
Quoted mutual funds (measured at fair value through profit and loss)
HDFC Ovemight Mutual Fund-Direct Plan - Growth Oplion 3,524.22 645.55
[99,184.691 units (March 31, 2023: 19,394.969 units)]
Fotal 3,524.22 045,55
Agpregate book value and market value of unguoted investments - -
Aggrepate markel vatue of quoted investiments 3,524.22 645,55
Aggregate amount of impainment in value of investments - -
9 Trade recelvables
Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 989.96 §,004.64
Tatal 959.%6 1,004.64
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally canry term of O to 60 days.
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for Tollowing periods from due date of payment
Particut - :
articulars Not due Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2.3 yenrs More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables
—Considered good* 468.52 - - - - - 989.96
—Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - v - -
Total trade receivables 468,52 - - - - 989.96
Less: Loss allowances -
Total 468,52 - - - - 989.96
“There are no disputed trade receivables, Hence, the same has not been disclosed in the ageing Schedule.
As ut 31 March 2023
Quistanding for followlag perlods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months - More than
- 2-3 ] 1
Not due 6 Montls 1 year 1-2 years yenrs 3 years Tota
Undisputed trade receivables
—Considered good* 488.81 36,40 - - - 1,004,64
~Which have significant increase in credit risk " - - - - -
‘Total rade recelvahles 488.4% 36410 - - - 1,004.64
Less: Loss aliowances -
Tatal 488.81 36.40 - - - 1,004.64

*There are no disputed trade receivables. Hence, the same has nof been disclosed in the ageing Schedule.
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Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As af
March 31, 2023

1¢ Cash and cash equivalents

i

12

13

Cagh in hand 0,13 0.13
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 44.80 380.45
Total 44,93 380.58
Other bank balpnces
- Fixed deposits (wilh remaining maturity less (han 12 months) 2,335.86 3,088.93
Total 2335486 3,088.93
Net debt reconcilintion
“This section sets oul analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for zach of fhe period presented
Net debt as on 31 March 2024

Fair value
Opening as Commitment /
Particulars wMareh Co Adjustment  Sustment (Other 31, 2004
31,2023 Flows during the year than Cash Flow)/
Others
Non cwrrent - Borrowings (including current maturities) 24,762.64  (1,144.25) - 11.93 23,630.32
Lease Liabilities 1,178.22 (57.94} - 109.16 1,229.44
Total Borrowing (A) 25,940.86  (1,202.19) - 121,09 24,859.76
Lesst
Cash and cash equivalents (380.58) 335.65 . - (44.93)
Investment in Mutual Fund {645.55) (2,869.81) - (8.86) {3,524.22)
Net eash & cash equivalent (B) {1,026,13)  (2,534.16) - (8.86) (3,569.15)
Net Debt (A- B) 2491473 {3,736.35) - 112,23 21,290.61
Net debt as en 31 March 2023
Fair value
QOpening as Commitment /
Particulars uanrch Cosh = iustment  20Justment (Other b 31,200
31, 2022 Flows during the year than Cash Flow) /
Others
Non current - Berrowings {including current maturities) 26,32043  (1,481,43) (88.29) 11.93 24,762.64
Lease liabilities 1,023.87 (56.14} 91.99 118.50 1,178.22
Total Borrowlng (A) 2734430 (1,537.57) 370 130,43 25,940.86
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents {44.70) (335.88) - - (380.58)
Investrment in mutual fund - {645,22) - (0.33) (645.55)
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) (44,70} {981.10) - (0.33) (1,626.13)
Net Debt (A~ B) 27,299.60  (2,518.67) 3,70 130,10 24,914.73
Other current finsncial assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on security deposits 3.88 2.44
Receivable from related parties {refer note 34) 4.88 728
Interest accsued on bank deposits 18,62 28.28
Total 27.38 35.00
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 61.86 71.57
Other advances (including advance to employees) 9.85 12.69
Balance with government autharity 5.14 1.31
Total 76,85 85.57
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14, Equity share capital

As at As at
Particulars
March 31,2024  Mareh 31, 2023

Authorised share capitnh:
Equity share eapital
76,000,000 { March 31, 2023: 76,000,000} equity shares of Rs,10/- each 7,600.00 7,600.00

7.600.00 7,600.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up share capital;
75,040,000 { March 31, 2023: 75,040,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 7,504.00 1,504.,00

7,504,00 7.504.00
A, Reconciliation of number of equity shares
Issued, subseribed and fully pald-up share capital Number of shares Ameunt
At April 01,2022 7,50,40,000 7,504.00
Increased during the year - -
At Mareh 31, 2023 7,50,40,000 7,504.00
Increased during the year - -
At Mareh 31, 2024 7.50,40,000 7.504.00

B. Terms/Rights attached o shares

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

‘The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share, Each holder of equity shares is entilled 10 one vote per share. In the event of liquidation
of the Company, the holders of equity shares wil} be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

C. Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

75,040,000 { March 31, 2023; 75,040,000) equity shares of Rs, 10/- each held by Juniper Green Energy Private Limited, the holding

company and its nominee 7,504.60 7,504.00
P. Detalls of shareholders holdings more than 5% shares
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Name of the shareholder

Number of shares Percentage of  Number of shares  Percentage of
held Holding held Holding
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited, the holding company and its nominee 7,50,40,000 100,00% 7,50,40,000 100,00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharehelders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

B, Details of equity shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change in
the beginaing of the shareholding at the end of the  of the Company shareholding
year during the year YRl during the year
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited and its nominee 7,50,40,00¢ - 7,50,40,000 100.00% -
As at Mareh 31, 2023
Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change In
the beginning of the sharelolding af the end of the  of the Company sharehoiding
ycar during the year year during the year
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited and its nominee 7,50,40,000 - 7,5G,40,000 160.00% -

F. The Company has not issued any shares pursean! to a contract without payment being received in cash in the current year and preceeding five years. The Company has not
issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buy back in current year and preceeding five years.

15, Other Equity As at As at

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
(a) Retained earnings*
Openiog 2,260.79 1,165.80
Add ¢ Net profit for the year ! 1,056.72 1,094.77
Add : Other comprehensive incorre for the year, net of (0.35) 0.22
Net surplus in statement of profit and loss 3,317.16 2,260.79
Total ofher equity {a) 3,317.16 2,260,79

*Retained earning refer 1o the net profit/{loss) relained by the Company for its business.
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Particul As at As at
'TC s
o March 31,2024  March 31,2023
16 Borrowings
Secured
Tenn loan from financial institutions* 23,630.32 24,762 64
Amount disclosed under the head “current borrowings" (refer note 19) {1,196,26) {1,144.25)
Total 22.434.06 23.618.39
Note*

Represeats {eem loan taken from India Infra Debt Limited ("IDF"} in INR specificatly for 70 MW solar power project in Mabarashira which carvies intezest of 8,20% per annum till April
27, 2027, The tenm loan is repayabls over a tenure of 18 years in quarterly instalinents starting from 30 June 2022 and ending on 31 March 2040,

Securlty:

{i) First Charge by way ol registered Morigage on all the immovable properties of the Borrower both present and future, wherever situate, perlaining to 70 MW Solar Photovoltaic Grid-
connected Power Project.

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of liypothecation of all the Borrawer's tangible movable assets/properties both present and future wherever siluate, periaining lo 70 MW Solar
Photovoltaic Grid-connected Power Praject.

(iii} Pledge of 76% of the promoter’s coniribution (Equity) in the prajest.

(iv) Fiest charge over all accounts of the Borrower including DSRA Account, EMRA account, all cusrent assets and intangible assets of the Borrower pertalning 1o 70 MW Solar
Photovoltaic Grid-connscted Power Project, both present and future.

{v) First charge on all revenues and receivables of {he Borrower, all pertaining to the 70 MW Solar Photovoltaic Grid-connected Power Projeet both present and future.

(vi} First charge by way of hypothecation over all the rights, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents (including the PPA},
in and under ali the clearances, in any letter of credil, guarantee and liquidated damages (including Contractual Damages), perfonnance bond provided by any Praject Participant,
jnsurance contracls and under Jeasehold land pertaining to the Projeot, bath present and future.

Provisiens

Non-current

Provision for gratuity (refer note 36} {1.81 16.43
Deconunissioning provision [refer note 32 B{g)] 365,19 337.52

Total 377,00 353,98
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18. Deferred tnx asset/ (Mabillty) (net}

As at As at
(a) Components of Deferred tax asset / (Hability) {net) Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferved tax nsset:
Provision for employee benefits 745 549
Lease Jiability 309.42 296.53
Decommissioning liability 91.91 84.95
Prepayment of land lease 7.66 7.57
Unabsorbed depreciation® 76.60 136.03
Gross deferred tax asset (A) 493.04 530,57
Deferred tax linbility:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,3715.37 1,037.46
Right to use assets 259.87 272.61
Unrealised mutual fund gain 2.31 0.08
EIR adjustment of borrowings 48,06 51.06
Gross deferred tax liability (13) 1,685,61 1,361.21
Net deferred tox assets / (Hability) (A-B) (1,192.57) (830.64)
As at As at
{b) Reconelllation of deferred tax assets / (liability) : March 31,2624  March 31, 2023
Opening balance (830.64) {458.05)
Tax incomef(expense) during the year recopgnised in stalemeni profit and loss (362.05) (372.52)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in other comprehensive item 0.11 {0.07)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 {1,192.57) (830.64)
(¢) Movement in deferred tax assets / (linbility)
Movement in deferred assets / (linbility) for current yenr ended March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)
April 1, 2023 Recognised in other Recognised in | March 31, 2024
Particulars
comprehensive income | profit and loss
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 549 0.11 1.85 7.45
Lease Liability 296.53 - 12.89 30942
Decommissioning Liability 84.95 - 6.96 9191
Prepayment of Land Lease 1.57 - 0.09 1.66
Unabsorbed depreciation® 136.03 - (59.43) 76.60
530.57 0.1 (37.64) 493.04
Liability
Property, plant and equipment - depreciation 1,037.46 - 33791 1,375.37
Right to use assets 272.61 - (12.74) 259.87
Investment al fair value 0.08 - 2,23 2,31
EIR Adjustment of Borrowings 5106 - (3.00) 48.06
1,361,21 - 324.40 1,685.61
Net Deferred tax assets / (Linbility) (830.64) 0,11 (362.05) (1,192.57)
Movement in deferred assets / {Liability) for previous year ended March 31, 2023 {¥in lakhs}

April 1,2022

Recopnised in other

Recognised in

March 31, 2023

Partieulars comprehensive Income | profit and loss

Assets

Provision for employee benefits 3.80 0.07) 1.76 5.49

Lease Liability 257.69 - 38.84 296.53

Decommissioning Liability 58.60 - 26,35 84.95

Prepayment of Land Lease 743 - 0.14 7.57

Unabgorbed depreciation™ 193.24 . (57.21) 136.03
520.76 (0,07) 9.88 530,57

Liability

Property, plant and equipment - depreciation 682.76 354.70 1,037.46

Right fo use assets 264.20 - 841 272.61

Investment a! fair value - - .08 0.08

EIR Adjustiient of Borrowings 31.84 - 19.22 51.06
978.80 - 38241 1,361.21

Net Deferred tax assets / (liability) (458.04) 007) (372.52) {830.64)

*The Company has unabsorbed depreciation of INR 304,34 Lakhs {(Mach 31, 2023; INR 540.54 Lakhs). The unahsorbed depreciation will be available for

offsetting against fiture taxable profits of the Company. The Company has recopnised deferved lax assets {on unabsorbed depreciation) QIMIﬁ\{ 7660 ‘,‘_“‘”k 5
(Mach 34, 2023 INR 136.03 Lakhs) ulilisation of which is-dependent on future profits. The Future taxable profits are based on projections {‘ﬁ'

considering the long-term power purchase agreemeént

ade By it
< <

N
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Particular As at As at
artletirs March31,2024  March 31,2023
19 Borrowings
Secured
Current malurites of long term borrowings 1,156.26 1,144.25
Total 1,196.26 1,144,258
20 Trade payables
- Tola} ousstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note - 33) 20,79 2125
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro aud smafl enterprises (refer note - 34 for dues of related party) 68.82 93.77
Total 89.61 155.02

2

22

13

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normully settled 0-90 days tetms.
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2024

Qutstanding Tor following pertvds from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled LQIS:’:::H 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yenrs Tofal

Tolal outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and siall enterprises - 20.79 - - - 20.79
Tolal ottstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 41.82 2043 1.39 0.47 501 68,82
Total 41.82 41,22 1,39 .17 5.01 89.61

*There are no disputed trade receivables, Hence, the same has not been disclosed in the ageing schedule,

As at 31 March 2023

Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particul
artieutars Unbitled L‘;s:,:::n 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 21.25 - - - 21.25
Fotal cutstanding duss of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 57.97 30.05 .69 4.97 0.09 93,77
Total 57.97 51.30 0.69 4.97 4,09 115.02
¥There are no disputed trade receivables. Henee, the same has not been disclosed in the ageing schiedule,
Other current financial liabilittes
Payable for purchase of Property, plant and equipment {includes nil (March 31, 2023: TNR 21.89 22,86
3.73 lakhs) payables to miero and smali enterprises, refer note 33) - ’
Retention money payable (includes INR 4.38 Iakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 9.7 8 lakhs)

) . 179.60 185.00
payables to micro and small enterprises, refer note 33)
Interest accrued but not due on ferm loan 4.82 5.05
Payable to relnted parties (refer note - 34) 13.65 14.47
Employee retated liabilities 5.85 5.95
Tatal 227.81 233,27
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 39,72 41,28
Tatal 39.72 41.28
Provisiens
Current
Provision for compensated absences 8.39 12,10
Provisions for gratuity (refer note 36) 0.05 0.01
Total 8.44 12.11
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Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
24 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of power 5,133.58 5,394.23
Less: Rebate charges - (52.05)
Other operating income
Sale of voluntary emission reductions (VERSs) 319.40 360.9%
Total 5,452.98 5,703,17
25 Other income
Interest income on
Fixed deposits 250.68 20798
Security deposits 431 2.71
Income tax refund 1.07 1.56
Interest rate swap income - 631.32
Profit on redemption of mutual fund 90.19 3043
Net gain on investment in Mutual Fund measured at fair value through profit and loss 9.1¢ 033
Miscellaneous income 3.53 -
Total 358.97 874.33
26 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 159.14 174.86
Gratuity expenses 4.98 5.17
Leave encashment 2,79 2,52
Coniribution to provident and other funds 9.71 11.05
Staff welfare expenses 21.21 12.15
Total 197.83 205.75
27 Finance cost
Interest on loan from financial institution 2,029.18 2,115.57
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 109.16 118.50
Interest expenses on decommissioning liabilities 27.68 35.60
Interest on loan from holding company - 89.75
Other borrowing cost (bank guarantee, hedging cost and other charges) 7.43 516.96
Total 2,173.45 2,876.44
28 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1,397.60 1,400.77
Depreciation on right to use assets (Refer note 3} 50.61 58.58
Total 1,448.21 1,459.35
29 Other expenses
Legal and professional expenses 113.67 120,47
Security expenses 103.56 97.1
Operational & maintenance expenses 111.6} 92.42
Insurance expense 69,22 76.01
Eleclricity charges 65.52 57.13
Rates & taxes 9.37 42.14
Travelling and conveyance 30.33 29.46
Payment to auditors (note 1) 10.23 13.94
Rent expenses - 12.73
CSR expenditure (note 2} 19.81 12.12
VER issuance expenses 27.19 7.37
Communication expenses 1.88 1.49
Business support services 6.58 -
Miscellaneous expenses 4,72
Total 573.69
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For the year eanded
Particulars

For the year ended

30

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note - 1
Payment to anditors comprises fee (inclusive of GST)
Audit fee 443 6.68
In other capacity

Other services {group reporting, certification fee and others) 5.30 6.38
Reimbursement of expenses 0.50 0.88
Total 10.23 13.94
Note - 2
Details of CSR expenditure
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for the year 15.80 11.00
b) Amount spent in cash during the year on

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 19.81 16.37

c) Details related to unspent obligations:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
it} On purposes other than (i) above “

Excess amount spent under section 135(5)

Amount required to be [  Amounf spent

Opening Balanc . . Closing Balance
P & © spent during the year during the year g

(1.12) 19.80 19.81 (1,13)
Income tax expenses
(a) Lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss comprises:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax charge relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 362.05 372.52
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 362.05 372.52
(b} Statement of Other Comprehensive lncome
Net {gain) on remeasurement of defined benefif plans (0.1 .07
Total (0.11) 0,07
{c) Recongiliation of tax expenses aud the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :
Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 1,418.77 1,467.29
Applicable statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax as per Income Tax Act 357.08 369.29
Tax as per Companies Act [refer above note 30(a)] 362,05 372,52
Adjustments for :
Adjustment pertaining lo earlier years - (0.0
Expenses not allowed under Income tax act and others {4.97 (3.22)
Total Tax 357.08 369.29

The tax rate used for the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 is the Corporate tax rate of 25.17% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits

under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
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31. Earnings Per Share (EPS):

32

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential

equity shares, if any.

The following data reflects {he inputs to calculation of basics and diluted EPS:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit as per statement of profit and loss for calculation of basic

EPS and dilative EPS 1,036.72 1,094.77
gfslghted average number of equity shares for calculating basic/diluted 7,50,40,000 7,50,40,000
Nominal value per share (%) 10,00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (%) 1.41 1.46

Stgnificant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
» Capital management (Refer note - 39)

» Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer note - 41)

» Sensitivity analyses disclosures {(Refer note - 41)

A, Judgments
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements;

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options, The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer fo Note 37 for
information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination
options that are not included in the lease term.
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B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to markel changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur.

a) TImpairment of non-financial assets

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal
factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

¢) Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. Al assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valtuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions aboui
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

¢) Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company uses its technical expert along with historical and industry trends for detaining the economic life of an asset,
The useful life is reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

f) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay®, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is availed
during the year,
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The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. Also refer to Provision for decommissioning liability below.

g) Prevision for decommissioning

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 70 MW solar project in
Maharashtra, the Company has recognised a provision amounting to INR 365.19 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 337.52 lakhs)
for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on frechold land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Company estimates that the costs would be
realised upon the expiration of the PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined
on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice, The timing
and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of current cost
estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.

33. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been relied
upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues to the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows.

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any

. . . 25.17 34.76
supplier as at the end of each accounting period
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 25.17 34.76
Interest due on above* Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond Nil Nil

the appointed day during each accounting period
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMEIDY Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil

accounting period

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Nil Nil

* The amount of principal and interest is not due to Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement
entered into with such vendors,
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34. Related Party Transactions

A) Name of related parties and related parties relationship

Relationship with the Company Names of Related Parties

Holding Company Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Juniper Green Field Private Limited
Juniper Green Three Private Limited
Fellow subsidiaries (With whom Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited
transaction have taken place) Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited
Key management personnel Naresh Mansukhani, Director

Parag Agrawal, Director

Pulin Mehta, Company Secretary

B) Statement of Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Intercompany loan received
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited - 935.00
Intercompany loan repaid
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited - 1,919.20
Interest expenses on loan
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited - 89.75
Reimbursement of expenses
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 2.55 7.28
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 0.18 -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 1.06 -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 0.15 -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 2.43 -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 9.98 -
Reimbursement of expenses for business support services
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 6.58 -
Salary and Other Benefits
Pulin Mehta 1.68 1.44

*All related party transactions are at arm’s length and in the normal course of business.

C) Balances Qutstanding as at Year End

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Receivable for expenses
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 4.72 7.28
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 0.15 -
Payable for expenses
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 0.18 14.47
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 1.06 -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 2.43 -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 9.98 -
Pavable for business support services
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 6.02 -
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35,

(®)

()

(c)

36.

(a)

L)

Commitments and Contingency

Lease
Refer nole 37 for lease related commitments.
Capital commitments.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for amounted to INR Nil
as on March 31, 2024 (March 31,2023: Nil)

Contingent FLiabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2024 are as follows: —

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
DSRA bank guarantee issued by bank* 1,573.00 1,595.00

* Issued by Bank in favor of Catalyst Trusteeship (on behalf of Project Lender - India Infra Debt Limited)
Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund fo a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner.

During the year, the following amounts have been charged to profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Employers’ contribution to Employee’s provident Fund and other funds 9.71 11.05

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity and other post-employment benefits

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefits are
unfunded, and Company provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valvations.

Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Company is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plans, Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth visk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants.
An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years witl increase the plan liability.

Life expectancy risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan
participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan liability.
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Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet,

Employee benefit expenses recognised in charged to profit and loss:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 3.79 4.58
Interest cost on benefit liability 1.19 0.59
Benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss; 4.98 5.17
Actuarial(gain) / loss 0.46 0.29)
Components' ()'f defined benefit costs recognised in other 0.46 (0.29)
comprehensive income
Balance Sheet:
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.86 16.44
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 16.44 7.72
Current service cost 3.79 4.58
Interest cost 1.19 0.59
Actuarial{gain) / loss 0.46 {0.29)
Others {10.02) 3.84
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 11.86 16.44
Current liability (Short term) (.05 0.01
Non-current liability (Long term) 11.81 16.43

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.22% 7.53%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation, Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.
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As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
1) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% (1.74) (2.39)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 217 2.97
2) Impact of the change in salary

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% 2.04 2.33
b) Impact due fo decrease of 1% (1.68) {2.01)
3) Impact of the change in attrition rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% {0.65) (0.79)
b) Iimpact due to decrease of 1% 0.76 0.91

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2623
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 0.05 0.01
Between 2 and 5 years 0.21 0.06
Between 6 and 10 years 0.54 0.35
Beyond 10 years 11,06 16.02

Weighted average duration of Gratuity Plan — 18.77 years as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 18.12 years),
37.  Leases:
The Company has lease contracts for leasehold properties used in its operations, These lease contracts generally have

lease term of 28 years,

The Company has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company
applies the 'short term lease' and 'leases of low value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

a)  Setout below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold land Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,04%.78 1,049.78
Adjustment during the year* 91.99 91.99
Depreciation for the year {58.58) {58.58)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,083.19 1,083.19
Depreciation for the year (50.61) (50.61)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,032.58 1,032.58

*Adjustment on account of interest and inflation rate reassessment and revision on decommissioning obligation for
leasehold land.
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b)  Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognized and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,178.22 1,023.87
Accretion of interests 109.16 §18.50
Paymenls {57.94) (56.14)
Adjustment during the year - 91.99
Balance as at the end of the year 1,229.44 1,178.22
Current - -
Non-current 1,229.44 1,178.22

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 41.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.20% with maturity in year 2047,

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 70 MW solar project in
Maharashtra, the Company has recognized a provision amounting to INR 488.21 lakhs (March 31,2023: INR 451.21 lakhs)
for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The provision as at March 31, 2024 was INR 488.21
lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 451.21 lakhs). The Company estimates that the costs would be realised upon expiration of the
lease ferm and PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined on a discounted
basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice. The timing and amount
of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of current cost estimates and the
interest rate used in discounting the cash flows,

¢) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5061 58.58
Interest expense on lease liabilities 109.16 118.50
Expenses related to short term [eases 17.35 23.56
Expenses relating to leases of Low value assels ) 1.18
Total amount recognised in the profit or loss for the year 177.12 201.82
Total Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low value assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2024, is INR 75.29 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 80.88 lakhs).

38. The Company is engaged in business of sale of electricity. Chiefl Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial
information of the Company as a whole for decision-making and accordingly, the Company has a single reportable
segment. The sale of power has been billed to a single customer. Further, the operations of the Company are limited within
one geographical segment. Hence, no further disclosure is required to be made.

39, (Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable lo

the equity holders of the parent, The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximize the shareholder

value,
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The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company meonitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, loans and borrowings,

trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings 23,630.32 24,762.64
Add: Trade payables 89.61 115.02
Add: Other current financial liabilities 227.81 233.27
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 44.93 380.58
Net debts (A) 23,902.81 24,730.35
Shareholders’ Funds (B) 10,821.16 9,764.79
Capital and unet debt (C=A+B) 34,723.97 34,495.14
Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) 68.84% 71.69%

In order the achieve this overall objective, the capital management of the Company, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure

requirements.

40, Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

a. Fair value

The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Company’s financial assets,

other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
Particulars Value Value

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2024 2024 2023 2023

Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 989.96 989.96 1,004.64 1,004.64
Cash & cash equivalent 44.93 44.93 380.58 380.58
Other bank balances 2,335.86 2,335.86 3,088,93 3,088.93
Security deposits 63.88 63.88 63.88 63.88
Other current financial assets 27.38 27.38 38.00 38.00
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund - Quoted 3,524.22 3,524.22 645.55 645.55
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payable 89.61 89.61 115.02 115,02
Other current financial liabilities 227.81 227.81 233.27 233.27
Lease liabilities 1,229.44 1,229.44 1,178.22 1,178.22
Borrowings 23,630,32 23,630.32 24.762.64 24,762.64
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The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade payables,
and other current financial liabilities except Forward Contract Payable, paid approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following method and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in aclive
markets.

Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

b. Fair Value hierarchy

The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the table.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in
unobservable.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2024

Date of pQr;:l?ﬁn Significant | Significant
Particulars . Total . observable | unobservable
Valuation active . .

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2} (Level 3)
Financial assets
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Security deposits March 31, 2024 63.88 - 63.88 -
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Ivestment in - mutual - fund = pioon 31,2004 | 3,524.22 3,524.22 : .
quoted
Financial liabilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings March 31, 2024 | 23,630.32 - 23,630.32 -
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023

Date of pQr;::(:aiei(ln Significant Significant
Particulars . Total . observable unobservable
Valuation active . .

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Security deposits March 31, 2023 63.88 - 63.88 -
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund - March 31, 2023 645.55 645.55 ) i
quoted
Financial liabilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings March 31, 2023 | 24,762.64 - 24,762.64 -

41. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to support the Company operations. The Company principal financial assets comprise, cash and
bank balance, other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks, The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives, It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
sumimarized below,

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Investments, loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk - Loans and other financial assets. None of
the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired.

Provision for expected credit loss is based on 12 month expected credit loss/life-time expected credit loss.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include
investment in fixed deposits,
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The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance
Sheet

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- Investments 3,524.22 645.55
- Security deposits 63.88 63.88
- QOther current financial assets 27.38 38.00
- Trade receivables 989.96 1,004.64

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix
to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

(i) Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company.
The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium tertn and

long-term funding requirement.

Exposure te liguidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash
flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2024 Carrying On Less than Between More than
amount one and Total
demand one year f five years
ive years
Borrowings* 23,630.32 - 3,112.92 14,726.56 22,550.16 40,389.64
Lease Liability 1,229.44 - 59.84 265.33 4,367.41 4,692.58
Trade payables 89.61 - §9.61 - - 89.61
Other current financial 227.81 - 227.81 - - 227.81
liabilities
Total 25,177.18 - 3,490.18 14,991.89 26,917.57 45,399.64
* Includes interest payable.
Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2023 f“:::]fl’:tg On Less than I:EL“:::I‘ More than Total
demand one year fi five years
ive years
Borrowings*® 24,762.64 - 3,161.75 12,102.44 28,287.20 43,551,39
Lease liability 1,178.22 - 57.95 254.70 4,437.87 4,750.52
Trade payables 115.02 - 115.02 - - 115,02
Other current financil 233.27 : 233.27 . . 233.27
liabilities
Total 26,289.15 - 3,567.99 12,357.14 32,725.07 48,650.20

* Includes interest payable.

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises twa types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits.
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(n) Foreign currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates, There is no foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2024 as well as at 31 March 2023,

Hence, the Company's Profit for the period would have no impact.

{(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the

Company’s long-term obligation with floating interest rate.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying variable rate of interest. This obligation
exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as

reported {0 the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments

March 33, 2024

March 31, 2023

Loan and bank borrowings*

Total

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the

impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Increase by 0.5% *

Decrease by 0.5% *

*The inferest rate has been fixed @ 8.20% for five years, hence the company has no interest rate risk on it's loans and

borrowings.

{(c) Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Price risk exposure:

Particular March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & Loss
Investment in Mutual fund 3,524.22 645,55

Sensitivity analysis

Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company’s profit for the year:

Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 176.21 32.27
Decrease by 5% (176.21) (32.27)
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42, Ratio analysis

- - - - [1)
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar- | 31-Mar % Reason for variance
24 23 Change
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 4.48 3.39 32.13% gii?e;toasézf:easc n
) Shareholder’s equity
Debt-equity ratio Total d?bt (cunen.t and (including loan from 2.18 2.54 (13.89%)
non-current borrowings}) .
holding company)
Debt service = Total
Earnings for debt service | finance cost
Debt service | = Net profit after tax + | (excluding non-cash
coverage ratio Deferred tax + Finance | expenses and 1.58 1.83 (13.44%)
& cost + Depreciation and | refinance cost) + Due
Amortisation Instalments as per
Debt arrangements
Average
Return on equity | nroeoniis after taxes | SPATCROIder's equity | g 900 | 1108% | (8.95%)
ratio (including loan from
holding company)
Inventory . .
turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory Not Applicable
Trade recc?lvablc Total revenue from Aveg'age trade 5.47 5.69 (3.95%)
turnover ratio contract with customers | receivable
T;‘ade ) p.ayabie Total other expenses Average trade 5.61 6.70 (16.33%)
turpover ratio payables
. ) Working capital = . .
Net papltai Totgl revenue from Current  assets  — 1.00 1.54 (34.98%) Due to increase In
turnover ratio contract with customers e current assets,
Current liabilities
Net profit ratio Net profit after taxes Totall revenue from 19.38% 19.20% 0.95%
P operations
Return on capital Earnings before interest, giplitl?:e ]f:{:ltpl\ngtclll i
P finance cost and taxes & - 10.08% 1228% | (17.96%)
employed (EBIT) Debt + Deferred tax
liability
Return “1 Finance income Investment Not Applicable

investment
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43, Other statutory information

(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(if) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

(vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(ix)

The Company has not been sanctioned a working capital limit by banks or financial institutions. Hence, the Company is
not required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial institutions.
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44, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring
companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting
software, However, the audit trail (edit log) feature is not enabled at database level to log any direct data changes. Further,
there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such feature is enabled.
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